City of Kelowna
Public Hearing
AGENDA
Tuesday, August 13, 2013
6:00 pm
Council Chamber
City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

Call to Order

THE CHAIRWILL CALL THE HEARING TO ORDER:

1.(a)The purpose of this Hearing is to consider certain
bylaws which, if adopted, shall amend Kelowna 2030 -
Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 and Zoning
Bylaw No. 8000.

(b)All persons who believe that their interest in property is
affected by the proposed bylaws shall be afforded a
reason-able opportunity to be heard or to present written
submissions respecting matters contained in the bylaws
that are the subject of this hearing. This Hearing is open to
the public and all representations to Council form part of
the public record. A live audio feed may be broadcast and
recorded by Castanet.

(c) All information, correspondence, petitions or reports
that have been received concerning the subject bylaws
have been made available to the public. The
correspondence and petitions received afterJuly 30, 2013
(date of notification) are available for inspection during the
course of this hearing and are located on the information
table in the foyer of the Council Chamber.

(d)Council debate on the proposed bylaws is scheduled to
take place during the Regular Council meeting after the
conclusion of this Hearing. It should be noted, however,
that for some items a final decision may not be able to be
reached tonight.

(e)It must be emphasized that Council will not receive any



representation from the applicant or members of the public
after conclusion of this Public Hearing.

Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the
Hearing was publicized.

Individual Bylaw Submissions

3.1 Bylaw No. 10867 (OCP13-0014) and Bylaw No.
10868 (Z213-0023) - 1150 & 1200 Steele Road, No.
21 Great Projects Ltd.

To amend the Official Community Plan Future Land
Use Designation and to rezone the subject
properties to accommodate the eventual
construction of a new middle school and to rezone a
park property recently dedicated to the City.

3.2 Bylaw No. 10872 (Z13-0022) - 1369 & 1375 Bertram
Street, John Bauer and Irvin & Linda Cordes

To consider rezoning the subject properties from the
RU6 — Two Dwelling Housing Zone to the RM5 —
Medium Density Multiple Housing Zone to
accommodate the proposed 8 unit, 4 storey row
housing project.

Termination

Procedure on each Bylaw Submission

(a) Brief description of the application by City Staff (Land
Use Management);

(b)The Chair will request that the City Clerk indicate all
information, correspondence, petitions or reports
received for the record.

(c)The applicant is requested to make representation to
Council regarding the project and is encouraged to limit
their presentation to 15 minutes.

(d)The Chair will call for representation from the public
in attendance as follows:

37 -61



(i) The microphone at the public podium has been
provided for any person(s) wishing to make
representation at the Hearing.

(i1) The Chair will recognize ONLY speakers at the
podium.

(iii)Speakers are encouraged to limit their remarks to 5
minutes, however, if they have additional information
they may address Council again after all other members
of the public have been heard a first time.

(e) Once the public has had an opportunity to comment,
the applicant is given an opportunity to respond to any
questions raised. The applicant is requested to keep the
response to a total of 10 minutes maximum.

(f) Questions by staff by members of Council must be
asked before the Public Hearing is closed and not during
debate of the bylaw at the Regular Meeting, unless for
clarification.

(g) Final calls for respresentation (ask three times).
Unless Council directs that the Public Hearing on the
bylaw in question be held open, the Chair shall state to
the gallery that the Public Hearing on the Bylaw is closed.

Note: Any applicant or member of the public may use
visual aids (e.g. photographs, sketches, slideshows, etc.)
to assist in their presentation or questions. The computer
and ELMO document camera at the public podium are
available. Please ask staff for assistance prior to your
item if required.



REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: June 28™ 2013 KEIOwna

RIM No. 1250-30

To: City Manager
From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW)

No. 21 Great Projects Ltd.
Application: OCP13-0014 / Z13-0023 Owner:

City of Kelowna
Address: 1150 & 1200 Steele Road Applicant: No. 21 Great Projects
Subject: [Title]

Multiple Unit Residential - Low Density, Single / Two Unit
Existing OCP Designation: Residential, Major Park & Open Space, Educational /
Institutional, Commercial
Multiple Unit Residential - Low Density, Single / Two Unit
Proposed OCP Designation:  Residential, Major Park & Open Space, Educational /
Institutional, Commercial
A1 - Agriculture 1, RU1 - Large Lot Housing, RU1H - Large Lot
Housing Hillside, P3 - Parks & Open Space
A1 - Agriculture 1, RU1 - Large Lot Housing, RU1TH - Large Lot
Proposed Zones: Housing Hillside, P2 - Educational & Minor Institutional, P3 -
Parks & Open Space

Existing Zones:

1.0 Recommendation

That Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP13-0014 to amend Map 4.1 of the
Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 by changing the Future Land Use
designation of a portion of Lot A, D.L. 579, SDYD, Plan EPP9618 Except Plans EPP9638, EPP15721,
EPP18670, EPP20408 and EPP22118, located at 1150 Steele Road and Lot 1, D.L. 579, SDYD, Plan
EPP20408, located at 1200 Steele Road from Multiple Unit Residential - Low Density, Single / Two
Unit Residential, Major Park & Open Space, Educational / Institutional, Commercial to Multiple
Unit Residential - Low Density, Single / Two Unit Residential, Major Park & Open Space,
Educational / Institutional, Commercial, as shown on Map "“A” attached to the Report of the Land
Use Management Department dated June 28, 2013, be considered by Council;

AND THAT Council considers the applicant’s June 26th Public Information Meeting to be
appropriate consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act, as outlined
in the Report of the Land Use Management Department dated June 28, 2013;

AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0023 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No.
8000 by changing the zoning classification of a portion of Lot A, D.L. 579, SDYD, Plan EPP9618
Except Plans EPP9638, EPP15721, EPP18670, EPP20408 and EPP22118, located at 1150 Steele



OCP13-0014 / Z13-0023 - Page 2

Road and Lot 1, D.L. 579, SDYD, Plan EPP20408, located at 1200 Steele Road from A1 -
Agriculture 1, RU1 - Large Lot Housing, RU1H - Large Lot Housing Hillside, P3 - Parks & Open
Space to A1 - Agriculture 1, RU1 - Large Lot Housing, RU1TH - Large Lot Housing Hillside, P2 -
Educational & Minor Institutional, P3 - Parks & Open Space as shown on Map “B” attached to the
report of the Land Use Management Department, dated June 28, 2013, be considered by Council;

AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment and the Zone Amending Bylaw be
forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
dedication of the public walkway connection the City as a titled lot;

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
submission of a plan of subdivision to consolidate the properties.

2.0  Purpose

To amend the Official Community Plan Future Land Use Designation and to rezone the subject
properties to accommodate the eventual construction of a new middle school and to rezone a
park property recently dedicated to the City.

3.0 Land Use Management

Staff is supportive of the OCP amendment and rezoning applications that have been submitted to
accommodate the eventual construction of a new middle school. A portion of the subject
property was designated Educational / Institutional when the Neighbourhood 3 Area Structure
Plan was created in recognition that the area would eventually be home to a school. Including a
school in a Village Centre meets multiple planning objectives and proving out a site plan in
advance confirms the feasibility of the site’s functionality. The School District has recently
indicated they will be moving forward with the purchase of the property and have now
determined the size and dimensions required to accommodate the school. The OCP lines are
being adjusted and the property will be rezoned in order to make way for this project in the
Ponds Neighbourhood. As part of this application a linear park parcel that has been designated to
the City will also be rezoned to P3 - Parks & Open Space as supported in the Official Community
Plan. A Natural Environment DP will be processed by Staff as part of the application process.

4.0 Proposal
4.1 Project Description

One of the conditions of the School District’s agreement is that the property be successfully
zoned P2 - Educational & Minor Institutional prior to purchasing the property. The school district
recently decided to proceed with the purchase of this property given the existing enrolment
pressures in the area and the impending development of the surrounding area. The subject
property is undersized compared to Ministry of Education area standards and would only
accommodate the construction of one sports field. However, a Letter of Understanding has been
entered into with the City of Kelowna for the shared use of the future adjacent City sports fields.
Although the scope of the middle school will be more clearly defined as it moves through the
capital planning and School District approval process, some preliminary work has been done. The



OCP13-0014 / Z13-0023 - Page 3

details of this work can be found in the School District’s Letter of Rationale attached to this
report.

As part of the development of the Ponds Neighbourhood a public trail adjacent to the future
school site has recently been dedicated to the City. This trail corridor is appropriately designated
in the Official Community Plan but it needs to be rezoned to the P3 - Parks & Open Space zone. A
subdivision application and Natural Environment Development Permit will be completed as part
of the proposal.

4.2 Site Context
Subject Property Map:

1252

1245
-
1245

<}

City of Kelowna = Accuracy and coractness nol guarantead.

The subject property is located in the North End area of town in a predominantly single family
neighbourhood. Adjacent land uses are as follows:

Orientation Zoning Land Use
North P3 - Parks & Open Space Future Park
East P3 - Parks & Open Space Trail Corridor
South P3 - Parks & Open Space Trail Corridor
West RU1H - Large Lot Housing Future Residential




OCP13-0014 / Z13-0023 - Page 4

5.0 Current Development Policies
5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)

Staff recommends that the applicants June 26™, 2013 Public Information Meeting and the
documented Neighbourhood Consultation process be considered appropriate consultation for the
purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act, and that the process is sufficiently early
and does not need to be further ongoing in this case. Furthermore, additional consultation with
the Regional District of Central Okanagan is not required in this case.

Staff have reviewed this application, and it may move forward without affecting either the City’s
Financial Plan or Waste Management Plan.

5.2 Current Development Policies - Kelowna Official Community Plan 2030 (OCP)
5.2.1 Development Process (Chapter 5)

Ensure opportunities are available for greater use of active transportation and transit
to: improve community health; reduce greenhouse gas emissions; and increase
resilience in the face of higher energy prices (Objective 5.10)

Maximize Pedestrian / Cycling Connectivity. Require that pedestrian and cyclist
movement and infrastructure be addressed in the review and approval of all City and
private sector developments, including provision of sidewalks and trails and recognition of
frequently used connections and informal pedestrian routes.

Transit Infrastructure. Require that transit service needs to be integrated into
community designs and development proposals to optimize access to transit service and
incorporate essential infrastructure on transit routes identified.

Institutional Land Use Policies

Ensure the development of institutional facilities meets the needs of residents.
(Objective 5.32)

Planning for School Sites (Policy 1). Ensure the identification of school sites in appropriate
locations during the planning of new neighbourhoods or intensification of existing
neighbourhoods, based on the size and composition of the projected school age
population. Encourage joint use of and stronger relationships between school facility and
community recreation facilities.

Location of Schools (Policy 5). Plan residential and other development such that schools
(public and private) can be viably operated in central and easily accessible areas such as
the City Centre, Town Centres, Highway Centre or Village Centres. Encourage retention of
schools, and location of new schools, in central and easily accessible areas. Locations
within the Urban Centres should be promoted wherever possible.

Access to Schools (Policy 6). Ensure schools are located where sidewalks, crosswalks and
cycle routes and trails already exist or can be economically added to provide safe routes
to and from schools, including adherence to CPTED principles, as well as the City’s
Guidelines for Accessibility in Outdoor Areas.



OCP13-0014 / Z13-0023 - Page 5

Community Use of Schools (Policy .7). Encourage that schools be designed so as to
facilitate, during non-school hours, use for before/after school programs, recreation
programs, youth/family activities, adult education or other community uses.

6.0 Technical Comments
6.1 Building & Permitting Department
¢ Demolition permits are required for any existing building(s).
e Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any
Building Permit(s) for new construction.
e This is an area with a potentially high ground water table, a geotechnical engineer will
be required to establish a safe building elevation and safe bearing capacities.
e Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit
applications.
6.2 Development Engineering Department
See Attached.
6.3 Fire Department
Fire department access, fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of
Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. The Subdivision Bylaw #7900 requires a minimum of
150ltr/sec fire flows. Additional comments will be required at the building permit
application.
6.4 Infrastructure Planning - Parks & Public Spaces
Multi-use trail connection to community park site west of school should be titled lot that
is transferred to the City and zoned P3,not P2 as indicated in application.
6.5 Public Health Inspector
Interior Health supports this zoning amendment as it adds to Healthy Built Environment in
the following ways:
e Contributes to existing recreational infrastructure
e Supports a developing higher density neighbourhood
7.0  Application Chronology
Date of Application Received: June 3, 2013
Public Information Meeting: June 26", 2013

Report prepared by:

Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner



OCP13-0014 / Z13-0023 - Page 6

Reviewed by: Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use

Approved Inclusion: D. Gilchrist, Community Planning & Real Estate Divisional Director

Attachments:

Map A

Map B

Subject Property Map

Site Photos

Lot Layout

School District’s Letter of Rationale
Development Engineering Requirements
Public Consultation Summary



Ll e AL
. \ * |

o

Subject Property Note:

Amend the OCP for a portion of the subject property
from Single / Two Unit Residential (52RES)
to Education / Institutional (EDINST).

Subject Property Notes:

Amend the OCP for portions
of the subject property from

Single / Two Unit Residential (S2ZRES)
to Major Park and Open Space (PARK).

i

Subject Property Notes:

£ Aved fru oF)

'l Amend the OCP for portions of the subject property
| from Major Park and Open Space (PARK)
== .| to Educational / Institutional (EDINST).

i P P I'li‘ rler1ll 1:-' | 1. ]
|

2 _

|
—T e |

e WY

. B

MAP "A" OCP AMENDMENT
OCP13-0014
- Commercial —J Legal Parcel

I =ducation / Institutional [ subject Properties
Multiple Unit Residential (Cluster Housing) BR8] PARK to EDINST
Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) m S2RES to EDINST
Multiple Unit Residential {Low Density} R 82RES to PARK

- Majer Park and Open Space

I public Service Utilities
Single / Two Unit Residential

~ Single / Two Unit Residential - Hillside

This map is for general information cnly. City Of

The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its
Kelowna

accuracy. All information should be verified.

[ 40 80
: e \etres Rev. Jun 26, 2013




1450

Subject Property Notes:

Rezone a portion of the subject property
from RU1TH /Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area)
to P3 Parks and Open Space.

1213 g II!Z!»;‘1=1237LZ¢3|50|D_ 1 1 L A

Subject Property Notes:

Rezone a portion of the subject property
from RU1TH /Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area)
to P2 Education and Minor Institutional.

288 b 1294 1450

] 1255‘\ t2rz | 12 12 \ A1
L TRuR

121 4

| b lazer
) 11279 1zm'|

i [ 1212 15, \
| 1 | P L pasired 2 \ 1 ‘l ‘
1255 1 -

=e=sun i RU3

1
£ Ry

JERELEEL]
=

\ L b n&\ms\‘m

Subject Property Notes:

Rezone a portion of the subject property
from RUTH /Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area)
to P3 Parks and Open Space.

— 1 Ty 1, g 3 12000 i
Ry, ! i 1 -nnr,m‘i\ 1
so68 1280 125511272‘\ \ \

L

+ 1254
! |
! .

MAP "B PROPOSED ZONING
File #213-0023

Legal Parcel

[ subject Properties

RU1H fo P2

T RUIHO P3

This map is for general information only. Clty Df
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its

accuracy. All informaticn should be verified. Ke I own a

0 40 8
e Melies  Rey. Jun 25, 2013




Map Output Page 1 of |

Application
0OCP13-0014

Z13-0023

Subject Property

PLAN 82565

IMap: 847 x 913 m -- Scale 1:5,000 2013-06-03

Certain fayers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information oniy.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

http://kelintranetd/serviet/com.esri.esrimap. Esrimap?ServiceName=Overview Mapé&Clie... 2013-06-03



LEGEND

RUTHTO P2

I RutHTOPS
3

PLAN KAPG66/79

T SCALE 1:2000 r‘ ENGINEERING » PLANNING = GEOMATICS
702—1708 DOLPHIN AVE. KELOWNA B.C. VIY 954
DATE JUNE 12, 2013 | & PHONE (250) 9B0-5500 FAX (25Q) 8805511

APPROVED
DESIGN BY  CWH NEIGHBOURHOOD 3 - THE PONDS DEVELOPMENT

o e REZONING APPLICATION - PROPOSED CHANGES

CHECKED BY




PP9618

|

3
PLAN KAPGB6779

=

Aei
L

[ _ SINGLE/ TWO UNIT RESIDENTIAL-HILLSIDE TO PARK

A
!

{31503

LEGEND

| PARKTOEDUCATIONAL/ INSTITUTIONAL

- SINGLE / TWO UNIT RESIDENTIAL-HILLSIDE TO EDUCATIONAL / INSTITUTIONAL

DESIGN BY CwH
DRAWN BY  ATC
CHECKED BY

—

—— " —_— —]|
SCALE 1:2000 r1 ENGINEERING » PLANNING * GEOMATICS

702-1708 DOLPHIN AVE. KELOWNA B.C. V1Y 954
DATE MAY 24, 2013 | PHONE (250) 980-5500 FAX (250) 980 5511
APPROVED

NEIGHBOURHOOD 3 - THE PONDS DEVELOPMENT

PROPOSED OCP FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENTJJ




School Site

i —

.L.
e~ s e
= T . e
e = T =T

— g e S

o

—




SCHOOL SITE
AREA:Z.78ho

LEGEND MANHOLE oun AR BMz_ [oEsion cad THE CITY OF KELOWNA e

— "\azm =H MH "_.. mc . ) APFRDVED O ENGINEERNG DEPARTWENT WAL
8N, SEWTR LoE STANDARD ocm DATE: MAY 2013

Mﬁnz SeweR: CATEH Basl Rea BRSPS  Sowaos [SCuE 1:500

U/G TELEPHONE - il wd.. T - - Eare, K THE PCNDS SCHOOL SITE SUBDIVISION

/G EECTRCA ] T SURVEY WOHUNENT & NG| GATE | oY REWSION s A (220) S80-5814 wmm“m_-w.zcm W_ommﬁ»h

CITY FILE Z12—-002t



SCHOOL DISTRICT No. 23

(Central Okanagan)
1940 Underhill St, Kelowna, B.C. V1X 5X7
Tel.(250) 860-8888

May 21, 2013

Shelley Gambacort

Director Land Use Management
City of Kelowna

1435 Water Street

Kelowna, BC V1Y 1J4

SUBJECT: PROJECT RATIONALE, IN SUPPORT OF RE-ZONING APPLICATION AND OCP
AMENDMENT, FOR THE PROPOSED SCHOOL SITE IN THE PONDS NEIGHBOURHOOD

Dear Ms Gambacort,

The re-zoning and OCP amendment application submitted by No. 21 Great Project Ltd. is to
accommodate the eventual construction of a new middle school on the subject property. The
Board of Education of School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan) has a conditional agreement to
purchase the subject property with one of the conditions being the successful rezoning of the
property to P2.

To assist the City of Kelowna staff and council in their consideration of the above mentioned
application, the school district has prepared the this letter of rationale outlining the requirement
for a middle school in this area, preliminary project details and estimated timelines.

NEW MIDDLE SCHOOL PROJECT JUST!FICATION

. Anne MoClymont
Long-Range Planning Context e s
Elementary

The Central Okanagan School District has five families of

. L : Okanagan
schools revolving around the five high schools and their Chute Lake Missi
feeders. The Okanagan Mission family is composed of Elementary L3I,
three K-7 elementary schools and one 8-12 secondary Secondary
school serving a community population of around Dorothea Walker

Elementary



12,000. This family is one of two areas, Lake Country being the other, which does not have a
middle school.

In November 2012 the Board of Education approved a Long-Term Facility Plan that is designed
to guide decision-making for the next decade and beyond. The plan also provides a context for
discussions with the Ministry of Education regarding capital requests and provides a consistent
organized approach to establishing capital priorities.

The Long-Term Facility Plan makes a number of district wide recommendations as well as
family specific recommendations. One of the district wide recommendations is to move towards
a junior middle school model which would mean elementary schools would be K-5, middle
schools 6-8 and secondary schools 9-12. Research and trends elsewhere indicate that this is a
positive move for the education of youth as they start gaining exposure to specialized and
elective programs at an earlier age.

A family specific recommendation for the Okanagan Mission area is to acquire a suitable middle
school site and construct a Grade 6-8 middle school. This will facilitate the implementation of
the junior middle school mode! around the district as well as relieve enrolment pressures on the
three area elementary schools (by removing grades 6 and 7).

Okanagan Mission Area Enrolments

The Okanagan Mission family of schools have both immediate and projected enrolment
pressures that need to be addressed.

Okanagan Mission Secondary's (OKM) enrollment pressures to date have been accommodated
with the use of an eight classroom portable annex located onsite. QKM is in the process of
receiving a 300 student addition that will add classroom space as well as an improved gym and
theatre facility. This extension also includes a Neighborhood l.earning Centre component to be
jointly used and operated with the City of Kelowna.

Chute Lake Elementary is currently over capacity and enrolment for the 2013/14 schaool year will
be capped for the second year in a row. The School District has projected that for September
2013 approximately 50 students will be sent to Anne McClymont who registered at Chute Lake
as their school of first choice. The Chute Lake catchment area has the highest proportion of
children aged 04 (8%) in the entire district so the spike in enrolments is expected to continue.
The combine enrolment of Chute Lake, Anne McClymont and Dorothea Walker already exceed
Ministry of Education defined capacities and the 2013/14 school year is likely the last year the
K-7 population can be accommodated in the three area elementary schools without the addition
of further temporary structures.

Subject to Board of Education approval, as an interm solution, staff propose that in September
2014 the Grade 7’s move into the OKM annex (that will be available when the addition is
complete) where an interim Grade 7-8 middle school program would be established. The more
permanent solution to these capacity issues is to construct a 6-8 middle school as outlined in
the Long-Term Facility Plan and as justified by the capacity chart in Fig 1.



Fig 1 — Enrolment justification for new middle school

Number of Students Over Capacity in Okanagan Mission

Family of Schools
" 900 - -
| Opening of OKM addition
800
700 . . - —_— .
600

" 500

300 _ - : B 1
200 | - e B/
100 B N . B
0 : - - -

2013 2014 2015 20062017 2018 2019 2020 2025022 2023

SCOPE OF PROPOSED MIDDLE SCHOOL

A school site within The Ponds neighbourhood was identified during the Area Structure Plan
process for this neighbourhood. The subject property is designated in the City of Kelowna OCP
for educational purposes (although the lots lines are different necessitating the OCP
amendment).

The school district recently decided to progress with the purchase of this property given the
existing enrolment pressures in the area, the impending development of the surrounding area
and the lack of suitable non-ALR land in the Mission area for an alternative middle school site.
The Ponds offers a location within a mixed use development and in relatively close proximity to
the Kettle Valley area which accounts for a significant amount of the area’s enrolment and future
growth. The future extension of South Perimeter infrastructure will significantly enhance
accessibility to the school site from the Crawford area.

The subject property is undersized compared to Ministry of Education area standards and would
allow in its own right for the construction of only one sport field. However, to the north of the
subject property is a piece of park land owned by the City of Kelowna and discussions between
School District No. 23 staff and City of Kelowna staff have resulted in the creation of a Letter of
Understanding which outlines the draft terms for the shared use and development of multiple
sports fields between the two sites. A copy of this letter preliminary agreement is attached. The
formation of a partnership agreement with the City of Kelowna on use of the adjacent park lands
is critical to the feasibility of this project.



Further partnership opportunities with the city may also be available through the
Neighbourhoods of Learning program where the Ministry of Education will provide 15%
additional capital to fund a “community” portion of the school. The preliminary building layout in
figure 2 assumes the 15% additional community component.

Between both partnerships opportunities listed above, a potential middle school within The
Ponds neighbourhood would likely be an asset to this community in many ways.

Preliminary Site Development Plans

Although the scope of the middle schoo! will be more clearly defined as it moves through capital
planning and approval processes, the district has done some preliminary design work to ensure
the site is viable and to provide the City of Kelowna with the information required to inform
council's consideration of this decision given there is no concurrent Development Permit
process.

Figure 2 shows a preliminary site layout for a middle school on the subject property. The design
assumes the following:

o Estimated number of students: 600 (room for 150 student expansion)

s Estimated number of classrooms: 24

e Estimated number of levels: 2

o Estimated gross floor area: 6319sm (includes 15% additional space for Neighbourhood
Learning Centre)

e Estimated main floor area: 3906sm

e Estimated: Upper floor area: 2408sm

o Proposed catchment: Elementary feeder school would likely be Chute Lake Elementary,
Dorthea Walker Elementary and Anne McClymont Elementary

» Number of sports fields: One onsite and one on City of Kelowna property

Figures 3 and 4 show some preliminary renderings for the proposed school.



Figure 2 — Preliminary Site Layout

L AL a G L

s \

| trin. 1|i

semree; |

Prmim e
ol vy v

T

=l

W

e

A
g \
§§ . \,
7 "
L \
"
|
E i
5 1
g 5 7
28 i l\.
125 [0 1
-S§ : %
k3
2 N
i *
(Y

J200-TEZ TUE AT




Figure 3 — West Elevation — Main Entrance Zoom

west elevation  main entrance -



Capital Approval Process and Timeline

The construction of an Okanagan Mission middle school is in the district's 5-Year
Capital Plan. The school district has Ministry of Education approval to purchase the
property but does not yet have approval to build the middle school. Prior to being
considered for ministry capital funding the district must complete a Project Identification
Report which is designed to confirm the project requirement, assess the relative cost
and merits of potential options, include a financial plan, identify partnership opportunity
and make a recommendation. The PIR for this project is slated for completion by the
end of 2013.

Upon receipt of all capital plan submissions in the province, the ministry analyses
individual project requests and the supporting Project Identification Reports, allowing
the request to be assigned a priority ranking on a provincial basis. The time line for
receiving confirmation of capital funding from the ministry is unknown. It's likely that a
junior middle school within the Okanagan Mission area would not be opening for 5+
years.

Should city staff or council have any addition questions of the Central Okanagan School
District regarding our support of this application and/or our future plans for the site
please contact our Planning Manager, Emily Watson (Emily. watson@sd23.bc.ca).

Kind Regards,

y bt .

Larry Paul

Secretary Treasurer

School District No.23



To: City of Kelowna Land Use Management
¢/o Mr. Alec Warrender

Land Use Planner, RPP, MCIP

1435 Water Street,

Kelowna, BC,

Viy 114

Re:  Public Notification and Consultation Summary
Proposed Re-Zoning for the School Site and The Ponds (Z13-0023)

As requested by Land Use Management and as required by Council Policy 367, The Applicant
{The Ponds) was required to undertake Public Notification and Consultation related to Rezoning
application Z13-0023. Specific to this application, the undertaking of both a “Neighbour
Consultation” and a “Public Information Session” was required to meet the intent and criteria
outlined in the Policy and Bylaw No. 10540. The following is a summary of the process and
results of the consultation required:

A) The Neighbour Consultation

The neighbour consultation included personal sharing of information regarding:

e the location of the proposal,

e adetailed description of the proposal including the specific changes being proposed,

e avisual rendering and a site plan of the proposal was provided,

e contact information for additional information if required {the Ponds and Land Use
Management contacts were provided),

e a personal and written invitation to the Public Information Session was provided,

e alternate methods of feedback were discussed {phone calls, emails and comment sheets
available at the Public Information Session)

*(see attachment — “Neighbourhood Consultation with Residents” which was additionally provided to
neighbours at the time of meeting with them)



Neighbour Consultation Process:

o Date of Completion: June 17, 2013

o Three attempts, (morning, afternoon, and evening) were made by The Ponds staff to meet and
discuss the rezoning directly with property owners within 50 m of the subject property.

o Face —to — face conversations took place with owners located at house # 1177, 1183, 1189,
1195, 1207, 1213, 1225, 1231, 1237, 1243, 1248, 1249, 1254 Steele Rd and 5012 Redstem Rd.

»  Property owners at 1201 and 1219 Steele Rd were absent during those times. A detailed
package was left for them with an invitation to contact The Ponds 1o answer any guestions,
request further information, and provide feedback on the proposed rezoning plan.

e Absentee property owners ( 1260, 1266, 1272, 1276, 1282, 1288, and 1294 Steele Rd) were
emailed the same detailed package with an offer to answer questions.

*{see attachment- “School Planning Information™)
Neighbour Consultation Feedbaclk

o  The consensus was all very positive regarding the location and specifics of the school rezoning.

s No negative comments regarding the proposed rezoning were received.

s Six of the neighbours expressed concern regarding the dead trees located in the park area north
of the school (hazardous situation for school children and the general public).

o  No additional feedback or comments were received by telephone or email.

B) The Public Information Session:

The Public Information Session was held on June 26, 2013 from 4:00 pm to 7:00 pm at the Kinsmen
Fieldhouse, Mission Sports Fields, Lexington and Gordon Rd, Kelowna, BC. pursuant to the objective set
out in the Council Policy.

The timing was selected to provide flexible and alternate times for public attendance, whether they
work or not {late afternoon, on the way home from work or after dinner). Representing The Ponds were
Ms. C. Lloyd and Mr. D, Lange. Mr. A. Cumbers attended on behalf of School District # 23.



Notification of the Public Information Session:

The Public Information session was advertised through the Capital News and the Daily Courier on June
11 and 12 respectively. *(see attachment — “Newspaper Ads”) '

A hand delivered mail out was also provided to an additional fifty local residents felt to be most directly
impacted by the rezoning on June 7, 2013. Residents met during the Neighbour Consultation process
were also given a personal and hard copy invitation to attend the Information Session where the School
District would be represented and available for questioning.

*(see attachment —~ Hand delivered Mail out)
Relevant Information Provided:
The Public Information Session included display boards providing information about:

e The Rationale for the rezoning from the School District perspective

e The general area and site specific context

e A description of the Rezoning and OCP Amendment proposals

o A preliminary site plan and 2 renderings of a preliminary building concept

e Contact information for representatives from The Ponds and the Planner from Land Use
Management

*{see attachments —“Presentation — Display Board Information” and , “Preliminary Site Plan”}.
Also made available for public review were:

o The City’s Neighbourhood 3 Area Structure Plan (providing a more detailed Planning Context)

e The Environmental Assessment and Habitat Compensation Report for the site (Golder and
Associates)

e The Geotechnical Feasibility Study (Calibre Geotechnical)

e The School District No. 23 Brief outlining the planning context from the School District’s
perspective

Feedback forms was available and attendees were invited to provide input on the forms during the
session or by telephone/email after the session .



Summary of Attendance:

A sign-in sheet was used to track public attendance. Residents that attended the Session were:

Time Name Address

4-5:00pm Vivian Ferdinands 2348 Dewdney Rd Kelowna

5-6:00 pm Jennifer Clarke 5217 Benmore Crt Kelowna
Ed Grifone 2575 Maquinna Rd, Kelowna

6-7:00 pm Gary Gaspari 609 Peridot Place Kelowna
Mary and Ray Morton 1207 Steele Rd. Kelowna
Jenny Hildebrand 204-735A Cook Rd. Kelowna

Input and Feedback

The input received from the session was all verbal. In spite of invitations, no feedback sheets were
completed or telephone call/emails received. Comments documented were very positive:

-liked the Middle School concept in the area
- felt the location was central
-liked that the school was close to but not directly on a main road

- liked the trail system to encourage walking & biking to school
- "keep up the good work”

- there was more general curiosity about the timing of the new school than anything else.

The Neighbour Consultation and Public Information Sessions were organized and conducted in & highly
professional manner in accordance with the Council Policy No 367 — Public Notification &Consultation for

Development Applications. If you have any questions or require additional information / clarification, please do

not hesitate to contact me directly.

Dave Lange,

dave@theponds.ca

Office: (250) 764-8700

Cell: (250) 863-7887




CITY OF KELOWNA
MEMORANDUM

Date: June 28, 2013

File No.: Z13-0023

To: Land Use Management Department (AW)

From: Development Engineering Manager (SM)

Subject: 11560 1200 Steele Road Lot A Plan EPP961 3 School Site

The Bevelopment Engineering Branch comments and requirements regarding this application to
rezone from RU1H to P2 and P3 are as follows:

The Development Engineering Technologist for this project is John Filipenko. AScT

1) General

a) The postal authorities must be contacted to determine whether or not a
“community mailbox” will be utilized, and if so, its location should be determined
and the proposed location shown on the construction plans. Please contact the
Canadian Post Corporation, Delivery Services, P.O. Box 2110, Vancouver, B.C.
V6B 473 (604) 662-1381 in this regard.

b) Provide easements as may be required.

.2) Geotechnical Report

a) Provide a comprehensive geotechnical report (3 copies), prepared by a
Professional Engineer competent in the field of hydro-geotechnical engineering to
address the items below: NOTE: The City is relying on the Geotechnical
Engineer's report to prevent any damade to property and/or injury to
persons from occurring as a result of problems with soil slippage or soil
instability related to this proposed subdivision.

The Geotechnical reports must be submitted to the Planning and Development
Services Department (Planning & Development Officer) for distribution to the
Works & Utilities Department and Inspection Services Division prior o
submission of Engineeting drawings or application for subdivision approval.

(i) Area ground water characteristics, including any springs and overland
surface drainage courses traversing the property. ldentify any monitoring
required.

(i) Site suitability for development.

(iii) Site soil characteristics (i.e. fill areas, sulphate content, unsuitable soils
such as organic material, etc.).



3)

4)

Z13-0023 1150 1200 Steole Road School Site  jf.docx ' Page 2 of &

Water
(a)
(b)

(©)

(d)

(iv)  Any special requirements for construction of roads, utilities and building
structures.

(v) Suitability of on-site disposal of storm water and sanitary waste, including
effects upon adjoining lands.

(vi} Sloﬁe stability, rock fall hazard and slippage including the effects of
drainage and septic tank effluent on the site.

(vii)y  Identify slopes greater than 30%.

i) Tap of bank assessment and location incldding recommendations for
property line locations, septic field locations, building setbacks, and
ground water disposal locations.

i) Recommendations for items that should be included in a Restrictive
Covenant.

iv) Any special requirements that the proposed subdivision should undertake
so that it will not impact the bank(s). The report must consider erosion
and structural requirements. .

v) Any items required in other sections of this document.

vi} Recommendations for erosion and sedimentation controls for water and
wind.

vii) Recommendations for roof drains and perimeter drains.

The property is located within the City of Kelowna service area.

Provide an adequately sized domestic water and fire protection system complete
with individual lot connections. The water system must be capable of supplying
domestic and fire flow demands of the project in accordance with the Subdivisian,
Development & Servicing Bylaw.

The developer's consulting engineer will determine the domestic and fire
protection requirements of this proposed P2 zone and establish hydrant
requirements and service needs.

Landscaped boulevards, complete with underground irrigation systems, must be
integrated with the on-site irrigation system.

Sanitary Sewer

a)
b}

c)

The property is located within the City of Kelowna service area.

Provide an adequately sized sanitary sewer system complete with individual lot
connections in accordance with the Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw.

The developer's consulting engineer will determine the requirements of the
proposed zone and establish the service needs.



.5)

6)

Z13-0023 1150 1200 Steele Road School Site  jf.docx Page 3 of

Drainage

a)

b)

d}

d)

Provide an adequately sized drainage system complete with individual lot
connections. The Subdivision, Development and Servicing Bylaw requires that
each lot be provided with an individual connection: however, the City Engineer
may permit use of individual ground water disposal systems, where soils are
suitable. For on-site disposal of drainage water, a hydrogeotechnicat report will
be required complete with a design for the disposal method (i.e. trench drain /
rock pit). The Lot Grading Plan must show the design and location of these
systems for each lot.

Provide the following drawings:

i) A detailed Lot Grading Plan (indicate on the Lot Grading Plan any slopes
that are steeper than 30% and areas that have greater than 1.0 m of fill);

ii) A detailed Stormwater Management Plan for this development; and,
iif) An Erosion and Sediment Control Plan.

Show details of dedications, rights-of-way, setbacks and non-disturbance areas
on the lot Grading Plan.

Identify clearly on a contour map, or lot grading plan, the top of bank(s}). Provide
cross sections along the top of the bank at each property corner and at locations
where there are significant changes in slope. Cross sections are to be
perpendicular to the contour of the slope. Show the proposed property lines on
the cross sections. Not all areas have a clear top of bank; and therefore, field
reconnaissance by City staff and the applicant may be needed to verify a suitable
location for property lines.

Where ditches are provided they must be adequately lined and protected for the
design flows.

Steele Road frontage is fully urbanized and therefore no further upgrades are
anticipated at this time.

Frost Road extension: Dedicate 20.0m and construct a 11.2m road to a modified
standard including, barrier curb and gutters, 3.3m separate multi-use asphalt
pathway with a 2.2m landscaped boulevard adjacent to the school site, a
separate 1.8m concrete sidewalk with 1.35m landscape boulevard on the west
side of the roadway, a piped storm drainage system complete with underground
irrigation system, and streset lights. Provide a preliminary design that shows the
possible vertical grades of Frost Road up to the location of the future cul-de-sac.

Provide a 3.3m wide multi-use asphalt pathway connection to the community
park site to the north of the school site. The pathway shall be within a titled lot
that is transferred to the City and zoned P3

The TIA prepared by Focus Corporation identified the need to upgrade the
intersection control at Gordon Dr / Steele Rd. to a higher standard. The
signalization of the intersection wilt be a requirement of rezoning.



7)

8)

.9)

£13-0023 1150 1200 Steels Road Schocl Site f.docx Page 4 of 5

e)

f)

Gordon Dr and Frost Rd will be monitored to see if a higher form of pedestrian
control is needed. This too shall be a part of the proponents engineering
requirements as they have advanced the construction of the Gordon Dr extension
south of Frost Rd.

Provide a Street Sign, Markings and Traffic Control Device Drawings.

Power and Telecommunication Services and Street Lights

a)

b)
c)

d)

All proposed distribution and service connections are to be installed underground.
Existing distribution and service connections, on that portion of a road
immediately adjacent to the site, are to be relocated and instalied underground

Street lights must be installed on all roads.

Before making application for approval of your subdivision plan, please make
arrangements with Fortis BC for the pre-payment of applicable charges and tender
a copy of their receipt with the subdivision application.

Make servicing applications to the respective Power and Telecommunication
utility companies. The utility companies are required to obtain the City’s approval
before commencing construction.

Design and Construction

a)

b)

Design, construction supervision and inspection of all off-site civil works and site
servicing must be performed by a Consulting Civil Engineer and all such work is
subject to the approval of the City Engineer. Drawings must conform to City
standards and requirements.

Engineering drawing submissions are to be in accordance with the City's
‘Engineering Drawing Submission Requirements” Policy. Please note the
number of sets and drawings required for submissions.

Quality Control and Assurance Plans must be provided in accordance with the
Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw No. 7900 (refer to Part 5 and
Schedule 3).

A “Consulting Engineering Confirmation Letter” (City document ‘C'} must be
completed prior to submission of any designs.

Before any construction related to the requirements of this application
commences, design drawings prepared by a professional engineer must be
submitted to the City’s Development Services Department. The design drawings
must first be “Issued for Construction” by the City Engineer. On examination of
design drawings, it may be determined that rights-of-way are required for current
or future needs.

Servicing Agreements for Works and Services

a)

A Servicing Agreement is required for all works and services on City lands in
accordance with the Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw No. 7900. The
applicant’s Engineer, prior to preparation of Servicing Agreements, must
provide adequate drawings and estimates for the required works. The



Z13-0023 1150 1200 Steele Road School Site  jf.docx Page bcof 5

b)

Selrvicing Agreement must be in the form as described in Schedule 2 of the
bylaw.

Part 3, “Security for Works and Services”, of the Bylaw, describes the Bonding
and Insurance requirements of the Owner. The liability limit is not to be less than
$5,000,000 and the City is to be named on the insurance policy as an additional
insured,

.10)  Other Engineering Comments

a)

b)

Provide all necessary Statutory Rights-of-Way for any utility corridors required,
including those on proposed or exisfing City Larnds.

If any road dedication affects lands encumbered by a Utility right-of-way (such as
Terasen, efc.) please obtain the approval of the utility prior to application for final
subdivision approval, Any works required by the utility as a consequence of the
road dedication must be incorporated in the construction drawings submitted to
the City’s Development Manager.

1)  Charges and Fees

a}’ Development Cost Charges (DCC's) are payable
b) Sewer Specified Area Administration Fee of $250.00 to amend service boundary
{Spec area 1).
c) Drainage work Latecomers (pending) according to the Area Structure Plan.
d) Water Extended Service Area Latecomers:
ESA# | Frontender Available EDU Anniversary *Ratefunit
(rates increase)
8 S Mission Water | CWS-14 1288.00 | Jan 1,2013 182.00
11 No.21 CWS-17 552 Nov 11,2013 1242.00
*(these fees are to be confirmed at time of subdivision)
e) Fees per the "Development Application Fees Bylaw” include:
i) Street/Traffic Sign Fees: at cost if required {to be determined after
design).
ii) Survey Monument Fee: $50.00 per newly created lot (GST exempt).
i) Survey Monument, Replacement Fee: $1,200.00 (GST exempt) — only if
disturbed.
iv) Engineering and inspection Fee: 3% of construction value {plus HST).
Steve Mugnz,

JFIjf

PY Eng.
Developmgnt Ergineering Manager



CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10867

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP13 - 0014
No. 21 Great Projects Ltd.
1150 and 1200 Steele Road

A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500".

The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1.

THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 - Official
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future
Land Use designation of a portion of Lot A, District Lot 579, SDYD, Plan EPP9618
Except Plans EPP9638, EPP15721, EPP18670, EPP20408 and EPP22118, located at 1150
Steele Road, Kelowna, B.C., and Lot 1, District Lot 579, SDYD, Plan EPP20408, located
at 1200 Steele Road from the Multiple Unit Residential - Low Density, Single / Two
Unit Residential, Major Park & Open Space, Educational / Institutional, Commercial
designation to the Multiple Unit Residential - Low Density, Single / Two Unit
Residential, Major Park & Open Space, Educational / Institutional, Commercial
designation as shown on Map “A”;

This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 29" day of July, 2013.

Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk



(BiTALENE

Subject Property Note:

Amend the OCP for a portion of the subject property
from Single / Two Unit Residential (S2RES)
to Education / Institutional (EDINST).

e > S S e TNy

Subject Propet

Amend the OCP for portions
of the subject property from

Single / Two Unit Residential (SZRES)
to Major Park and Open Space (PARK).

nen

RER TR
N AER
./ SAATA 7N

2roperty/Notes:

4 Oy

| Amend the OCP for portions of the subject property
7 | from Major Park and Open Space (PARK)
..| to Educational / Institutional (EDINST).

fe s i " et et L et FRT L) LA
.“'*‘E_}; G‘oﬁ ., 000 I-‘;?_E}:.d ‘ | G - .--’I' 1 r”n:
Ot o L DQ Qs 5 o e . a— i5
e MAP A" OCP AMENDME

OCR13:0014:

| Commercial [ ] Legal Parcel
B Education / Institutional [] subject Properties
~ Multiple Unit Residential (Cluster Housing) [&&4 PARK to EDINST
Multiple Unit Residential {Medium Density} m S2RES to EDINST
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) [N S52RES to PARK
| {71 major Park and Open Space
"~ Public Service Utilities

5200

Single / Two Unit Residential

- Single / Two Unit Residential - Hillside ‘5 ’
! A Y

{ This map is for general information only. i ¥
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its Clty Of
accuracy. All information should be verified, K e I ow n a
0 40 80

| Emm——————————Mefres  Rey, Jun 26, 2013




CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10868
Z13-0023 - No. 21 Great Projects Ltd.
1150 and 1200 Steele Road

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning
classification of a portion of Lot A, District Lot 579, SDYD, Plan EPP9618 Except Plans
EPP9638, EPP15721, EPP18670, EPP20408 and EPP22118 located at 1150 Steele Road,
Kelowna, B.C., and Lot 1, District Lot 579, SDYD, Plan EPP20408, located at 1200
Steele Road from the A1 - Agriculture 1, RU1 - Large Lot Housing, RU1H - Large Lot
Housing Hillside, P3 - Parks & Open Space zone to the A1 - Agriculture 1, RU1 - Large
Lot Housing, RUTH - Large Lot Housing Hillside, P2 - Educational & Minor Institutional,
P3 - Parks & Open Space zone as shown on Map “B”.

2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 29" day of July, 2013.
Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk




Rezone a portion of the subject property
from RU1TH /Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area)
to P3 Parks and Open Space.

to P2 Education and

Rezone a portion of the subject property
from RU1TH /lLarge Lot Housing (Hillside Area)

Minor Institutional.

t
i

.

i |

o 15

1287} I

\ |
i

“S
L4
4 ;1294
1 120
m&ms
\ )

[1;‘

es/ 5| ot
,120-1}/\2:01 mn! 122}
] 2

Rezone a portion of the subj

to P3 Parks and Open Space.

\H 4 Rt:rﬂ'1zw\

from RUTH /Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area)

RUA

1450

ect property

™! Legal Parcel

P

Subject Properties

\ RU1H to P2

7 IRUIHIOP3

\\ This map fs for general information only.
Ay The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its
\ aceuracy. All information should be verified.

0 40

City of 5257
Kelowna

8
(f\/letres Rev. Jun 25, 2013




REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: July 12 2013 KEIOwna.

RIM No. 1250-30

To: City Manager
From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW)
John Bauer
Application: Z13-0022 Owner: ) )
Irvin & Linda Cordes
Address: 1369 & 1375 Bertram Street  Applicant: Eta(ljrry Tomporowski Architect
Subject: Rezoning Application

Existing OCP Designation: Multiple Unit Residential - Medium Density

Existing Zone: RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing

Proposed Zone: RM5 - Medium Density Multiple Housing

1.0 Recommendation

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0022 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000,
by changing the zoning classification of Lot 13, D.L. 139, ODYD, Plan 2271, located at 1369
Bertram Street and Lot 14, D.L. 139, ODYD, Plan 2271, located at 1375 Bertram Street, Kelowna
BC, from the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing zone to the RM5 - Medium Density Multiple Housing
zone be considered by Council;

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction;

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the
submission of a plan of subdivision to consolidate the properties into one title.

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw be considered in conjunction with

Council’s consideration of a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit on the
subject properties.

37



713-0022- Page 2

2.0 Purpose

To consider rezoning the subject properties from the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing Zone to the
RM5 - Medium Density Multiple Housing Zone to accommodate the proposed 8 unit, 4 storey row
housing project.

3.0 Land Use Management

Land Use Management staff are supportive of the proposal, as it is seen to meet the objectives
and supporting policies of the Official Community Plan (OCP). The RM5 - Medium Density Multiple
Housing zone is the appropriate zone and facilitates a form of housing needed within this urban
centre location. The subject property is located within the Downtown Urban Centre, within close
proximity to the commercial core where residential intensification has long been anticipated.

The form and character of the proposal presents a European flare, which is a departure from that
established in the area but adds an element of sophistication to this block which will transition as
time passes. The proposed development places a clear emphasis on human scale buildings that
feature strong relationships to both Fuller Avenue and Bertram Street, which is highly desirable
in this urban context. Private open space and a plaza area are featured on site, creating
enjoyable on-site opportunities for the future residents. In summary, this project delivers on
many aspects of both land use and urban design that are encouraged for the Downtown Urban
Centre revitalization efforts.

4.0 Proposal

4.1 Project Description

The proposed development consists of a total of 8 - 4 storey row housing dwelling units split
between 6 - 2 bedroom units and 2 - 3 bedroom units. Principal vehicular access is via the rear
lane but the 2 - 3 bedroom units have garages facing Bertram Street. Long term bicycle parking is
provided within individual storage units, and short term bicycle parking is provided near the
centre of the site adjacent to the visitor vehicle parking. A new sidewalk will be provided along
Bertram and Fuller. Both frontages provide a strong pedestrian orientation, with main building
entrances and patios. Such design elements serve to activate these building frontages with
heightened levels of pedestrian activity.

The buildings represent a more European form of development that has been modified to fit
within the Okanagan context. The finishes are of a high quality, featuring textured stucco cut to
emulate sandstone. Large rooftop decks have been incorporated to provide private open space
facing the street and site landscaping uses native species, where possible, and complements the
building design. The proposed variances are required in order to enable the developer to proceed
with this form of project. The majority of the variances are setback variances that shouldn’t
have a negative impact on the surrounding neighbourhood. The recent set of text amendments to
the multi-family zones were intended to create a stronger street edge with ground oriented
housing. This project would satisfy these regulations if not for the four storey form of
development, yet by stepping the 4" storey this will limit the massing impact and provide a form
of housing similar to that anticipated in the zone. The applicant hosted a Public Information
Meeting on June 20", 2013 in accordance with Council’s Notification and Consultation Policy No.
367.

38



713-0022- Page 3

The proposal compares to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 as follows:

13 stalls x 125% = 17 stalls max

CRITERIA RM5 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL
Development Regulations
Floor Area Ratio 1.3 1.3
Site Coverage - Buildings 40% 38%
Site Coverage - Buildings & Drive 65% 64%
Height 19.0m / 4.5 storeys 12.3m / 4 storeys
Front Yard 6.0m 1.5m*
Side Yard (north) 6.0m 1.5m*
Side Yard (south) 6.0m 1.5m*
Rear Yard 7.0m 1.5m*
Parking Setback 1.5m 0.5*
Other Regulations
Minimum Parking Requirements 13 stalls 18 stalls*

Bicycle Parking

Class I: 4 stalls
Class II: 1 stalls

Class I: 8 stalls
Class 11:10 stalls

Private Open Space

62m’ per dwelling

25m’ per dwelling

* To vary the front yard setback from 6.0m required to 1.5m proposed.
* To vary the side yard setback from 6.0m to 1.5m (northern setback) and 1.5m (southern setback) proposed.
* To vary the rear yard setback from 6.0m required to 1.5m proposed.

* To vary the setback from parking from 1.5m required to 0.5 proposed.
* To vary parking from 17 stalls permitted to 18 stalls proposed.

4.2 Site Context

Subject Property Map: 1369 & 1375 Bertram Street

39



713-0022- Page 4

The subject properties are located within the Downtown Urban Centre in an area designated for
a townhouse form of development.

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows:

Orientation Zoning Land Use
North RM5 - Medium Density Multiple housing Apartment Housing
East RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing Single Family Housing
South RM5 - Medium Density Multiple housing Apartment Housing
West RM5 - Medium Density Multiple housing Apartment Housing

5.0 Current Development Policies
5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)
Development Process

Compact Urban Form." Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1.

Ground-Oriented Housing.? Encourage all multi-unit residential buildings in neighbourhoods with
schools and parks to contain ground-oriented units with 2 or more bedrooms to provide a family
housing choice within multi-unit rental or ownership markets. High density residential projects in
the Downtown area are encouraged to include a ground-oriented housing component, especially
where such can be provided on non-arterial and non-collector streets.’

6.0 Technical Comments
6.1 Building & Permitting Department

¢ Demolition permits are required for any existing building(s).

¢ Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any
Building Permit(s) for new construction.

e The Architect to provide spatial calculations per BCBC 12 since this may affect the
form and character of the units if the glazing is required to be reduced or removed
prior to the release of the Development Permit.

e Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British Columbia
Building Code (BCBC 12).

e The drawings submitted for Building Permit application are to indicate the method of
fire separation between suites. This entails how the plumbing and heating system will
be installed without affecting the fire separation between units. This also includes the
windows in the west wing units (Studio Level) and the fire separation / privacy wall
(structural & FRR)

e Drawings submitted for Building Permit application to indicate the method of venting
the exterior deck floors above the garages.

e This is an area with a potentially high ground water table, a geotechnical engineer will
be required to establish a safe building elevation and safe bearing capacities.

e Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit
applications.

' City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter).
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.23.1 (Development Process Chapter).

40



713-0022- Page 5

6.2 Development Engineering Department
See Attached Memo.

6.3 Fire Department

Fire department access, fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of
Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. The Subdivision Bylaw #7900 requires a minimum of
150ltr/sec fire flows. Additional comments will be required at the building permit
application.

6.4 Fortis BC - Gas
FortisBC gas division has reviewed the above mentioned referral and has no issues or
concerns

7.0  Application Chronology

Date of Application Received: May 20", 2013
Public Information Meeting: June 20", 2013

Report prepared by:

Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner
Reviewed by: I:l Danielle Noble, Urban Planning Manager

Approved Inclusion: I:l D. Gilchrist, Community Planning & Real Estate Divisional Director

Attachments:

Site Plan

Elevations

Landscape Plan

Applicant’s Letter of Rationale
Development Engineering Requirements
Public Information Meeting Summary

41



Page 1 of 1

Map Output
Z13-0022
DP13-0082
DP13-0083
I Subject Property
1 - I
PL.3585 e 12
{10 A
CF K2913
13
] " PL63319
Idf[)sLR -
A PL_56315
12
A pt. 76900
cP
K3240 s
1 K
E 17
H
o ERTEE
K311 ; A KK92924
TPLogdgi | O}
_____ -3 H
T — ¥
Kazrs 5 KK73272)
e . | K2560
==t
1~ C7
* PL6643T APL.45917
14 j
A
" EPP526
St PLAT78S “ k1618 SH
VYOVt :AVE
1
ST e [—
t CF Kopt E .ig I~
5652 A PL.44088 I W ' ;
r T]18)lelm 1z
404 PL.25942 4 RUG ], RM5 | ~; . f 57
PLZ'33 ~ 2] H | PL2osrs [ E RTIN AVE
19 E 3 L .
: 8 3:1;33 [ E \P 7 21 N
1] 18
o k. E '
e 13
g 7 ] o 1
> 18 " 28852 @
: --;— - PL. 34898
fr— CP
_-& “ it
oP = G4 - . R
K180% i El e Meters
Imga - Adéuracy|anll déibefiess ) Bcd. LAWSON

2013-05-30f

IMap: 545 x 351 m - Scale 1:3,220

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esti.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Overview_Map&Clie... 2013-05-30



1

2

VIEW ALONG FULLER AVE,

Sonla: L5

VIEW ALONG BERTRAM STREET

Semler W75,

- VARITIONS A OHTICA TIOWS AR RGT
ALLDWER IITHOUT WRITTEN FERMISSICN
FROM TWE A GHIEST,

~ THIS DRATHE IS THE Extiaive
PROPERTY GF THE ATHITELT,

<Aty REPROOLETION MUSTARAA THER
HAME 43 LRE HITERT,

ra | 18| mmnron canevemy

o ron Gt

[ Ty—

e T
o | i
caE AT

o

mﬁm

Garry Tompatowekl Archiliacl Lig,
2454033 Sorhaleld Pid

Moknena, Britah Eobrmbla

wirsvs

i Z3ATRATA.
Tehsphane: 2SI 068

s guaoTicaGatswsi

Kensington

ﬁcjn‘.w?;ﬂ;
KELOWNA, BC

wamimg

SITE
PHOTOS

AO.1

“SarcHzm 2013 ] mLE Atsar




+NERIY ALL GIMENSHNS A0 ATUE

PRION T8-COUNENTEENT DF WO,
REEPORY 441 ERMOAAND CWIHISIANG.
10 e AMGMTERT,

- VATLATIGNS.AND MOOK IEATIEWE ANE 1T

ALLOATDWITHEUT DT M RMSIOR
Fliad Te& ARCHTEGT,

+ THIS BN THE ENCLUSIE
PRQPEATY OF THE ARZHITECT,

3HY REPADDLETION WUST SEAR THEIR
AN S ARGHTTEGE:

vwerars [ [ | cmmorce promemed
e [ o [ 1| e s
P o O s p—
vt | | 8 | mmurn et e
conurh| W[ e

FULLER & BERTRAM CONCEPTUAL RENDERING

Scal TS, 2 SakTRTA e

m.nm

Garmy Tomporowsk| Architact L,

2031880 Sprhglld Rd
i, Brln Cokimoin,
VIY VS

P PR TIA%
‘Teisqrans: 260671660

ol glacTheo@shanble.ca

Kensington
3:2@@335
KELOWNA, BC

o

BUILDING
PERSPECTIVES

@ BERTRAM STREET CONCEPTUAL RENDERING m v COURTYARD CONCEPTUAL RENDERING

Sous; TS, Scalaz 1.5,

“huRcHzes0n | AL Ater




D ————————————
~THIE DRI LLIST HOT NR SOALID,

VI AuL OMENEIONS sl B Twus
FRIZA 1D COUIENCEWENT DF BIDRK,
RERORT ALL ERRORS ANG ORPZIONS
TOTHE ARTUTEST,

= VARMTIONE A4 M DOIEATIHE ARG NOT
ALV WITHGUT v 1TEN PERLISAICH
FREM THEARCHTRET,

~ THIS DARUNG 16 THE EiLane
PROPEATY OF THE ARGHITEST,

Y REPACOLETION NIST $IAR THEIR
kUG A ACHITEST,

REAR YARDSETEACK
St Ko T

hcE (o

et P A My #

5] Vo 1.5}

FRAMING STREET SETOACK
50 [1.52m)
.

DENSTUTFAMILY .0 e DENISTLDHIFAMICY
T

Wy
DERSTLRYFAMILY DENIS TUDYFAMLY

DENTTLOYFAUILY
1porearT

WO [ELTE

RMEFR o ARt

EoAncAl
yieig
el N
MEE A = N
FauE 1 g k Y
5 3 &
sTorncE i
Sonn 3 N r—————
f 4 3 o
= = ~1= Y =i
m g = i LaspsrieLn G ///
| v N
a B | 4 |
a £ L f— A
m == =1 | /
m ﬁ M g N
CURRENT ZONING: LG
=] PROPOBED RMS wkn varlances - MEDIUM DENSITY MULTIPLE HOUSIIS N
\ﬁ. @ "y H E: ULTIPLE OWBLLING HOUSING W SITEAREA-1878.61 SQRT( OO
= INE & MAX FLOOR AREA RATIO 1.3 FrRaPDEED -13 B @ BUILDING FODTPRINT ARFABLSE SOFT(13702)
L fou btz ol PR i CRWEHY AREA 37 ST ity
T Wi SITE GOVERAGE OF BUILOINGS.DRWEWAYS AND PARKING 6%  PROPUSED -6 TOTABULONS AREK: 21600 SOPT ity |, | m
MAX HEIBHT 1f m OF: 15 STOREYS FRAPOSED 13,3 m 34 STOREYS
T = = e N STEFRohY YARD e s 2 Vit Erarases ian PROPGED BANERAY i g
- Vi SITS SIDE YARDUFROW FLANKING STREET 4501791 PROPOSED  14m
4 &| drasr I [ Sromae 4 Vil £1TE REAR: YARD 7, (arata e 5 ramr beva) PROPDSED  16m L|€
A= 1 1m PFROPGSED 0uim VISITGRS/dm RESIDENTS. HE
: - = I bt F Garry Tomporowskl Architoct Lk,
= FARE10
e || : N %u || : Ay
N = = L o, b,
m & H szt | TR £ ] .t v e Ve 55
H F ] Fiuc P07 008
B[ B s 3 B b Tolsshone: 78,1682
aE |
EE 3 ¥ 3230 LARGSCARING 3 wmak gioaflea@shatiz.n
e - o = ey " T
'S el A i A SRR e
a = = :
HETAL FEROS E s
B L Kensington
terrace
s uler & Pyertzam
e , _ dlersBerwn
KELOWNA, BC
e
SITE PLAN &

GROUND FLOCR

GROUND FLOOR

Scales 10 “huach 26, 2013

FLE A1307







TOTHE ARCHITEET,
= ARKTIONS A0 IR ATONS AR NDT

) ® AT e FEuasar
I - - e . — ERMPETAET

= REPROGUE TION ULIT BEAR THER
hutl Ak coel T

T.6.TH RUDF TOR
230"

a
1
1
[

PROPEATY LIk

7.0, T ROOF BARDEN LA %

[, T.O.THSEEGND v

&

Wa, THERET LVL

.
e
\
j
i
E
|
T
i :
| EL
FE |
)
I
%ﬁii ‘w‘i
,’.
"z&%
%,

Py g 3 3 = g g ey iy ¥ ¥ gt g i Sy iy s ¥ gt v e s e g P gy g s i iy . s

‘ L ju ] P 3 . 2
- i AR A-p ly A5 8 A e L £
— | i
= It I | i ﬁ ! 111V : [ 0, TH GROUNDPARKING WYL
L _.h,.o. _. 200" [, apr i L | 20 | plad [ e _. [Haxd -1
B 1 i i 120 M ! 1 l o s
-+ ¥ s

teou BT

FULLER AVENUE ELEVATIONS

Seale: /At

e

T THRGOF TOF

&

RODF GARDEN LvL

T e

|\ NEEEE
IALLLE

............. mWﬁm

5 o T ettt il Al e i I R et i 5 3
5 = T -...l] a5 T e T |.€ Garry Tappswowiki Architect Lid,

T THSECOND . %

oad - MATERLAL LEQEND:
[ PR 7 5 S il izl B

= == =i et =~ v [—— 1 STUCED Borjamin Woorw COEMDPOLITAN
S e p—— e 2o T T . = 1 GARACE DO
Con M50 i E F 4 WETALRALING

| e e
_H'. Hﬂmaﬂﬂmmoh
e - Fullr Py
KELOWNA, BC

memrme

COURTYARD ELEVATIONS ELEVATIONS

Sk Y =10

T

A3.1

FLE: AT

T

“TasrcH |




= i 1 1 T.0.TH RO ToR

@

0. TH ROGF GARDEN LYL

)

T B e e B e

FROPERTY LINE

il o e | B

o

7.0, THBECOND LvL
200"

04

1.0, THFIRET L.

i

TH QROUNDPARKING LWL

Seale: Jfata 10

_ IO THROGF BARCEMINL,

7.0, TH BECOND LYL

FULLER AVERUE 414

BERTRAM STREET ELEVATIONS

MATERIAL LEGEND:
1 STUCCA Berjamin taars QOBWGPOLITAN

METAL RAILMG.

.

LANE ELEVATIONS

Sl 8" a14

*VARIATRAS 14O WO0IPEATING ARE WO
ALLOARD THOLT WATTTEN PRRUISSCH
RO THE AREHITECT,

« IS DRAING |3 IHE EXCLIENE
PACPERTY O THEARCHITEST,

Y BEPROALETIGN LAY STAR THRIR
HAE AL ARCHITECT.

&

%Q
&

e

09
&
&

wsists | ow | 1r | moworor ot
== wimas et P
o 1300 78 455 DAY
wwen | 3 |2 | o rencerazenar e
o e

FERne

N

mﬁm

Garry Tamparowski Archtoct Ltd.
2431809 Sannghekd Rd

Kalna, Crten Cokmais,

i s

Fac 2000270.2088
Telop hong: 250175, 1668

amail: giacmcaganewhiz.ca

Kensington
Fuller & Bertram
KELOWNA, BC

usme

ELEVATIONs

=

MARGH 26, 2013 FILE: w1307




CENERETE CORUER FLAZA b
PARVAL FAVRIPATTERN

:En.aszw,:u%ﬁT/
0,75 HT RETAHING WALL

CHTET OF B ARG WALL WY
PR LTS

BERTRAM STREET

RO HE UL WK G ENSTUILS ENTRY COLUIAN 21 L FLOWE TG T REE-
[ WETAL "ERETFENGZ ORI HENGE-
ESATENIRIES TURF AR
__. i FLIP/R| K
| GRausaven
SR P e T =D =T = S 5T
= Al i s A Ao Y R
o o I Tl & K .H P
e ! N
. ' b
. . o —creei2
| i : i - -, NINATERHCE SRS
| cLaTomcr
1 AMEE
e FGE OTCELO|
- ;
UNIT & UNITE UNIT 3 UNIT 2
= K (5 : ol
_ I
N
(5= vyl
==tk &
| ¥
1 e
Wi |
| L] g
A Nl '+
22
PROPERTY LINE
LD FLANTALS AT L AT GG P
YHIVF FLAHTSALCHG FRRET FREALY FFNTF
KEY POTANIGAL NAME CONRDH BAE GIY  BLZE # BPALING & REMARRS ZOd\mm
mees
HMELANCHER ALMFCLLA SUSCATOOH L) HISCOM, s BTEW 1 PLAHT WATERIAL AL COHSTELCTIDR BTN SH4LL UEET DK EXCEEN B.0LILA, STANTZATDS,
] SN LRGN COpAT n [ .
WORY SLEMPARCSC TREL LA 5 P ALLEORT LAMGSCAFE AREAS Sie | BE jd "ETOE A ¢ A FLLLY AUTOWA T VWP uPERGROMT
ULIP TREE K ERAATIN B S TP,
2 LIS ANISHEUS BERS T0 BE PRESGED 1414 M.k MW 7S 3000 HULCH DO HOT PLACE WEED 44T
10 &PEHOLE BUTTERFLY RUSH 36 IWBLEACATH FLIC 4D EHTU BILE.
B GREEM GEM' GREEH GEI2 BONDCN =
CCRMIS STOLCMFERA, S4REONT ARCTL FRERISROOE 25 A TREE AND SHIT_B BEDS TCRECENE A nhbl|td S00mpa DEFTE TERA0 L * ACEAET, m
PR RS FIPAANGES El -
BOATON El B. TURF #RFASF OIS SO0 SHALL BT HD, 1 GRADF SROWK FECH CPRT SFF0 DF MPROYED ULTIVARS.
PuwnRF L ORBAYLLAT 23 REGETERED FOR SALEIMB,C, #4429 ERALL I TOLERANT OF CLAWEHT COKMTDhE A HIAJIADF "COimn
HERI YN 2 DEITHOF GROMMS %IEZU & RESUITED SEMEATH TURF ARES, TURF AREAS SHA L IAES™ T¥STRG ORANES
PETITELE k=3 01 COUT 2 0.6n DL SPACHS AHD HARD SURFAFES FLISN.

UNIT 1

POSERTY LWE

|

ISR LA

AREA

ABmHT. AETAL
FIRRT FEHCE

| —s& comemionmz
N

|~ cnss

E

LAN

[Nt s am

LI ARZAGE
_ _ ERO.O%IRE

WETALGHIE FOST
= NP GATE 144 LIETAL FRAXE

%

WEOO S AT
GakpAGE
FRELOEUR

GARBAGE ENCLOSURE ~FROHT ELEVATION
GmalE wE

g
OUTLAND DESIGN

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

20 - 839 Spall Faaz
Kehsra, B VIV ARZ

D

PRZICT ML

FULLER & BERTRAM
URBAN TOWNHOMES

Kalzuma, 3C

b e

LANDSCAPE PLAN

EEUEP FON FIVBIT

Tuwn “Suesbpmant Feomil
a

n

PRALC 1h

[

[

CHECRE Y

LATE Juy 12,501
Scais o

£

ELVI HLASEL

L1/2

ISSUED FOR REVIEW DNLY




FULLER AVENUE

T
w
w
K i
®
m |
= H
' “.
[l E
mn __m
i
r
!
[ |
4l i
= ||
&
fi)
P il UNIT 8 N |
i |
Al —— L Ll
e = 1 2 = et — e
IRRIGATION NOTES

LRFIGAT G P02 19 AN STALATCHAGT-E05 SHALL ECT O EXGED THT RECURE-ENTE OF TR WATCRLST
RESULA T BYLAVH. 10400 41D THE SUVLELAENTAR BFYCIFIAIDIS N THE CITY OF RELE % BYLAW S5O0 (R 6,
2ERECULESE

2 THE:RRIGATCHE™ BTEM ErALLLEET THE REAURELIEHTS, REGLLATIOH, AME1STLAWS OF THE lea TER PURVEVDR,

2, THE ERIDN n =D 1 ALIAPTREYE: LY KASHIT
OFF LV LACATER DUTSIDE ™2 Bl DG ALESEELE T THECITY,

4 ANATFROVED SIWARTCCHTROLLER SHALL BE N3TALLED, T-E RRISATIGHSC-EPLLING TIVES S
VAILE 81 7 WDNT HIELL ENMA UL ¥ EY), TAZIS B3 CORRRITATION SOk Yl 5 69 L AD I

£ LTLIZE AWMU ET
Rt

B DRIP LI AMD EIATTTERS SHALL HEORFORATE FECHNOLOG™ T LIITT007 MTRLSEH

5, RRIGRGH SLFYFS SHLLBF RGTHFR T0 ROUTF RRIGATEM LIFS PR FASE SURFACPR AR FFATUFS.

7 RRiG b e ESTHIATED LAHDSCATE WATER GBE {1 w378 st _..._ J._

ST i 7
DA FLN EQYALVE Sl O THE CONTRGLLER 10 TOM FLOWTO THE WATER EALKHEE = 47 cuin. yuar ST b AT B Al
SYATER MEALS OF AR RRGATLAWATRTLEAR. “RERET ATTASER RIS TOHAPPLIZATIONROR SETAL IC Lo SULATIONS

LANE

=

VSN -

WATER CONSERVATION CALCULATIONS

————

[ F ==

LAHDSCAPE LIAXIIA %A TER BUDGET BVS) = 423 cumm. £ yese

=
¢

OUTLAND DESIGN
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
204 - 439 Spall Poma

[

T [250] B&ERZ70

wewwaullnnrobsin

N

O

RIICTIE

FULLER & BERTRAM
URBAMN TOWNHOMES

tabwns, B

Bt R Tm

WATER CONSERVATION
& IRRIGATION PLAN

EBIEN

Dytboprert Poimt

ERRANTS NUNEBEL

L2/2

ISSUED FOR REVIEW DNLY
Caprghibacsatad T iming
kg i chlocwe L w

HBudvd Durgr,
inchead,

e



_p-l—n’rl N

DEVELOPMENR
J-‘.‘L "; KI|F'||1 |l l‘: ? h [|". '_“ h'xl ]J ) lj ,;‘ l'u‘”‘:ﬂ r;‘i'
RATIONALE

A"

A13-07

Bertram Townhouses
Kelowna, B.C.

May 2013

_ Architecture
Interior Design and Planning
Building Envelope Consuiting

Frepared For.

Bertiam Townhouses Inc.

To be Submitied to:

City of Kelowna
Developiment Services

ARCHITECTURE

Garry Tomporowski Architect Lid
Kelowna, B.C, 250.979.1668




e

Kelowna, BC Canada V1Y 5V5
ARCHITECTURE : Phone: 250. 979.1668 Fax; 250.979.4366

Garry Tomporowski
Archi tect Ltd
243 — 1889 Springfield Road

Email: giaoff ]

TABLE OF CON

1.0

20

3.0

4.0

5.0

TENTS

OVERVIEW ..ottt sstsssssessssrses st sttt sosesrses s sssssesssssrsesrses 1
3150 2:T0) 1100 WS, 1
SITE AND PARKING ACCESS ..o eoeoeesesosseesesososesssessesssssrsossoserses st 2
B ER: 1601 80) 1S, 2
SUMMARY ..o essesseses s ss sttt sesstesesoesrtesrset s et rersese 2



gt_ A13-07 - BERTRAM TOWNHOUSE PROJECT May 2013

1.0 OVERVIEW

The Bertram Street Townhouse Project by Bertram Townhouses Inc. boldly presents Kelowna with a
masterfully designed and highly articulated luxury living option in the heart of Downtown Kelowna.

With this project, the Developers of The Madison are extending their expertise into the urban core
with yet another project to further expand the standards of gracious living in Kelowna's Cultural
District.

Bertram Townhouses Inc. together with the GTA Ltd. and Qutland Design Landscape Architecture
have created a neo-classic designed complex consisting of eight (8) three and a hall (3 ¥) storey
townhouses bordering on Bertram Avenue and Fuller Street which provides the image of gracious
living reminiscent of the 19" Century affluence found in New York, Baltimore, Chicago, Toronto and
Montreal,

Very special attention has been paid to the landscaping both in the front and rear yards, and also the
corner treatment at the intersection of Bertram and Fuller. This terraced and raised area with its
signature corner tree has been carefully articulated to integrate small accessible patio areas for the
two corner units and also to create the focus and the location for the signature sign for the project.

2.0 THE PROJECT

In developing the project, the aspects of elegance and walk-ability in the downtown core were key
factors. We feel that this has been successfully achieved in creating an “above current market value”
project which has already created a buzz of excitement in the community. The revitalization of
Downtown Kelowna has always been a key focus of City Council and the Planning Department, and
the Developers feel that this project can be impetus for others to carry-on in this manner, setting the
standard for future developments of urban infill.

This project will add further major support for the recently begun improvements to the Downtown
Revitalization project started with the Bernard Avenue face lift and the soon to be started THC and
Monaco complexes.

This design meets all of the objectives of the RM5 zoning with the exception of side yard variances. It
is felt that in considering the high quality of design, it would be possible to have these reviewed with
an eye to relaxation, especially considering the buildings positioning on the site relative to other
buildings across the street and to the South. We are extremely fortunate to have a large intervening
space between this project and the four storey condominium building to the South which includes
not only that large side yard, but the fact that the courtyard provides additional distance and
separation. The rooftop amenity area room provides a visnal and acoustic barrier for the townhouse
Owners from the building to the South, and affords townhouse Owners much needed privacy. The
street oriented units convey a sense of neighbourliness, and promote connectivity to the adjacent
properties using a variety of features to invite physical and visual interaction. A number of the
COEPD measures have been reviewed and integrated into the design of the project.

GTA has reviewed the Sustainability Checklist in preparation of the project and we have included as
many options as possible for consideration at this time, and many more will be considered during the
Building Permit Drawings stage.

Page 1of 2



gt Al3-07 - BERTRAM TOWNHOUSE PROJECT May 2013

3.0 SITE AND PARKING ACCESS

The rear of the project provides access to parking or the carriage way and is accessed from the lane.
Two parking spots are provided for each of the units and additional parking is enclosed in the rear
courtyard for visitors and extra parking for the Residents.

All but two of the units have their parking accessed from this courtyard with the two units on
Bertram Avenue being accessed from the street itself. These carriage ways will be specially
articulated with differentiating patterned concrete and receive special bordering landscaping
treatment to ensure that they are highly visible to pedestrian traffic. They provide a higher aesthetic
level to create additional interest along the streetscape. Because they are relatively short in length
they will be unable to be used for parking, and will not cause any impediment to regular pedestrian
traffic along the sidewalk. Considering that Bertram is a very short Street in itself, access to and
from the garages of these two units is not foreseen as a problem for the unit Owners, nor the regular
traffic along this street. Qur observations of the regular traffic at this time indicate that the volume
is very low and considering the length of the street as aforementioned, we do not see that this could
be a problem into the near or mid-term future.

4.0 THE BUILDING

Each one of the classically designed units is finished in a (finely) emulated sandstone exterior. Each
unit provides street frontage reinforcing the important pedestrian connection to the neighborhood
and beyond. Doorways and entrances are at street level and are accessed by carefully designed
individual gates emboldened by black iron-like picket fences, back-dropped by evergreen borders of
finely trimmed boxwoods, as well as other landscape bordering materials.

Each of the eight units is graced with a rooftop terrace to take advantage of the views of the
surrounding area and to provide extraordinary access to the Okanagan climate. These rooftop
terraces also provide a small sheltered and enclosed area for the storage of seasonal furniture and as
an area to withdraw from the elements should the need arise unexpectedly. These areas will also be
serviced with gas hook-ups for barbecues and some will have hot and cold water for clean-up and
domestic use. The leading edges of the parapets in many cases will be designed to accommodate
growing mediums to allow for decorative plantings reminiscent of old Montreal and parts of the
South-eastern USA.

5.0 SUMMARY

The Developers and design team felt that the combination of a high class design coupled with
leading edge technology and modern building materials will provide for a solid building project. As a
group, we feel that it will be a catalyst for other similar ‘urban in-fill’ developments in this area and
will be a testimony to the faith of a rejuvenated Downtown Kelowna.

It is also our hope that the project will become a timeless icon setting the standards for others to
emulate, and even exceed, in an area critical to the continued sustainability and growth of our City.

END

Page 2 of 2



CITY OF KELOWNA
MEMORANDUM

Date:

File No.:

To:

From:

Subject:

July 10, 2013
Z13-0022

Land Use Management Department (AW)
Development Engineering Manager

1369 & 1375 Bertram Street REVISED RU1 to RM5

The Development Engineering Department has the following comments and requirements
associated with this rezoning application. The road and utility upgrading requirements outlined in
this report will be a requirement of this development. The Development Engineering
Technologist for this project is Sergio Sartori

1.

Domestic Water and Fire Protection

(@)

a)

The subject properties are each currently serviced with one water service
(13mm). The developer's consulting mechanical engineer will determine the
domestic and fire protection requirements of this proposed development and
establish hydrant requirements and service needs. Only one service will be
permitted for this development. The applicant, at his cost, will arrange for the
disconnection of existing services and the installation of a new service. The
estimated cost of this construction for bonding purposes is $20,000.00.

The area has only one hydrant in the area which may not be sufficient for multi-
family developments. A second hydrant may be required for the proposed
development.

Sanitary Sewer

(@)

The subject properties are each currently serviced with a 100mm sanitary
service. The developers consulting mechanical engineer will determine the
development requirements of this proposed development and establish the
service needs. Only one service will be permitted for this development. The
applicant, at his cost, will arrange for the removal and disconnection of the
existing services and the installation of one new larger service. The estimated
cost of this construction for bonding purposes is $10,000.00.

Storm Drainage

(a)

One of the subject properties is currently serviced with a 100mm service. The
developer must engage a consulting civil engineer to provide a storm water
management plan for the site, which meets the requirements of the City Storm
Water Management Policy and Design Manual. The storm water management
plan must also include provision of lot grading plan, minimum basement elevation
(MBE), if applicable, and provision of a storm drainage service for the
development and / or recommendations for onsite drainage containment and
gisposal systems. The estimated cost of this construction for bonding purposes is
5,000.00.



Z13-0022 1369 & 1375 Bertram Street 2-

4. Road Improvements

(a)

(b)

{c)

(c}
(d)

Bertram Street must be upgraded to an urban standard along the full frontage of
this proposed development, including curb and gutter, sidewalk, drainage system
including catch basins, manholes and pavement removal and replacement, street
lighting and re-location or adjustment of utility appurtenances if required to
accommodate the upgrading construction. The estimated cost of this construction
for bonding purposes is $20,000.00

Fuller Ave must be upgraded to an urban standard along the full frontage of this
proposed development, including curb and gutter, sidewalk, drainage system
including catch basins, manholes, landscaped boulevard and pavement fillet,
street lighting and re-location or adjustment of utility appurtenances if required to
accommodate the upgrading construction. The estimated cost of this construction
for bonding purposes is $25,000.00

Lane adjacent to this development site will require widening and reconstruction fo
a paved commercial standard. The estimated cost of this construction for bonding
purposes is $5,000.00

Landscaped boulevards, complete with underground irrigation, is required.

Driveway access is not permitted onto Bertram Street. All vehicular access is to
be from the lane.

5. Road Dedication and Subdivision Requirements

By registered plan to provide the following:

(a) Grant Statutory Rights Of Way if required for utility services.

(b) Dedicate a corner rounding of a 6.0m radius at the Bertram Street and Fuller
Avenue intersection. '

(c) Dedicate widening of the rear lane to provide the required widening to provide an
ultimafe 7.6m wide commercial standard lane.

(d) Lot consolidation.

(e) If any road dedication or closure affects lands encumbered by a Ultility right-of-
way (such as Hydro, Telus, Gas, etc.) please obtain the approval of the utility.
Any works required by the utility as a consequence of the road dedication or
closure must be incorporated in the construction drawings submitted to the City’s
Development Manager.

5. Electric Power and Telecommunication Services and Street Lights

a) All proposed distribution and service connections are to be installed underground.

b) Streetlights must be installed on all roads.

) Make servicing applications to the respective Power and Telecommunication
utility companies. The utility companies are required to obtain the City’s approval
before commencing construction.

d) Re-locate existing poles and utilities, where necessary. Remove aerial trespass

(es).



Z13-0022 1369 & 1375 Berfram Street 3-

10.

Desigh and Construction

C)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Design, construction supervision and inspection of all off-site civil works and site
servicing must be performed by a Consulting Civil Engineer and all such work is
subject to the approval of the City Engineer. Drawings must conform to City
standards and requirements.

Engineering drawing submissions are to be in accordance with the City's
‘Engineering Drawing Submission Requirements® Policy. Please note the
number of sets and drawings required for submissions.

Quality Control and Assurance Plans must be provided in accordance with the
Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw No. 7900 (refer to Part 5 and
Schedule 3).

A “Consulting Engineering Confirmation Letter” (City document ‘C’) must be
completed prior to submission of any designs.

Before any construction related to the requirements of this subdivision application
commences, design drawings prepared by a professional engineer must be
submitied to the City’'s Development Engineering Department. The design
drawings must first be “Issued for Construction” by the City Engineer. On
examination of design drawings, i may be determined that rights-of-way are
required for current or future needs.

Servicing Agreements for Works and Services

(a)

(b)

A Servicing Agreement is required for all offsite works and services on City lands
in accordance with the Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw No. 7900.
The applicant’s Engineer, prior to preparation of Servicing Agreements, must
provide adequate drawings and estimates for the required works. The Servicing
Agreement must be in the form as described in Schedule 2 of the bylaw.

Part 3, “Security for Works and Services”, of the Bylaw, describes the Bonding
and [nsurance requirements of the Owner. The liability limit is not to be less than
$5,000,000 and the City is to be named on the insurance policy as an additional
insured.

Other Engineering Comments

(a)
(b)

Provide all necessary Statutory Rights-of-Way for any utility corridors as required.

If any road dedication affects lands encumbered by a Utility right-of-way (such as
Terasen, eic.) please obtain the approval of the utility prior to application for final
subdivision approval. Any works required by the utility as a consequence of the
road dedication must be incorporated in the construction drawings submitted to
the City’s Development Manager.

Geotechnical Report

a)

Provide a comprehensive geotechnical report prepared by a Professional
Engineer competent in the field of hydro-geotechnical engineering to address the
items below: NOTE: The City is relying on the Geotechnical Engineer’s report to
prevent any damage to property andfor injury to persons from occurring as a
result of problems with soil slippage or soil instability related to this proposed
development.

- Overall site suitability for development.
- Presence of ground water and/or springs.
- Presence of fill areas.



Z213-0022 1369 & 1375 Bertram Street 4 -

11.

12.

- Presence of swelling clays.

- Presence of sulphates.

- Potential site erosion.

- Provide specific requirements for footings and foundation construction.

- Provide specific construction design sections for roads and utilities over and
above the City’s current construction standards

pevelopme.nt Permit and Site Related Issues

(a)

(b)

The development will be required to contain and dispose of site generated storm
water on the site by installing an oil separator and ground recharge system
consisting of drywells and perforated pipe bedded in drain rock.

Access and Manoceuvrability

(i) An SU-9 standard size vehicle must be able to manoeuvre onto and off
the site without requiring a reverse movement onto public roadways. If the
development plan intends to accommodate larger vehicles movements
should also be illustrated on the site plan.

Bonding and Levy Summary

(@)

Bonding ‘

Service Upgrades $ 35,000.00
Bertram Street Frontage Improvements $ 20,000.00
Fuller Ave Frontage Improvements $ 25,000.00
Lane upgrading 3 5,000.00
Total $ 85,000.00

NOTE: The bonding amount shown above are comprised of estimated
construction costs escalated by 140% to include engineering design and
contingency protection and are provided for information purposes only. The
owner should engage a consulting civil engineer to provide detailed designs and
obtain actual tendered construction costs if he wishes to do so. Bonding for
required off-site construction must be provided and may be in the form of cash or
an irrevocable letter of credit, in an approved format.

The owner must also enter into a servicing agreement in a form provided by the
City.

Steve Muenz, P. Eng.
Development Engineering Manager

SS



June 21, 2013

Re: POLICY 367
Council Policy - Public Notification & Consultation for Development Applications:
APPROVED February 18, 2013

Specific to:
1369/1375 Bertram Street, Kelowna BC
Bertram/Fuller Development Rezoning application submitted May 23, 2013

Summary of Open House Information Session

An Open House Information session was held on June 20th, 2013 from 6 pm to 7:30 pm for all
residents within 50 meters of the above noted property. The details of the notification process
and package are attached here in a full report dated June 14, 2013.

The event was set up outside the house on the property as an open house drop in to allow
residents to see the new artists renderings and ask questions directly of the developer and
assistants. Steve Hyndman, Conner Hyndman and Sandy McAfee were available to answer
questions to anyone attending the open house,

Large samples of the new renderings were on display including the chosen name for the
townhomes which will be called Kensington Terrace.

Guests were asked to sign in fo identify what properties they owned or occupied (copy of sign in
sheet attached). There were approximately 18 people in aftendance over the 90 minute period.
The majority of those in attendance were individuals from the Bertram Place Condominiums
which back onto the property and share a fence with the townhome project.

The majority of questions pertained to actual height of the building, parking, access to parking
and the rooftop terrace design. The overall feel of the event was very positive with many
commeniing that they were very glad the project was not another condo project and felt that the
townhouse concept would be a welcome addition to the downtown of Kelowna. In addition there
were many comments about the curb appeal and high quality of the project with many feeling it
can do nothing but positively impact the look and resale value of the properties in the area.
Some residents had indicated they had some concern of what might go into the neighborhood
once the old houses started to be sold and felt this was the best option they could have
imagined.

Several members of the strata for Bertram Place were in aftendance with concerns about the
fence backing their property that will run adjacent to Kensington Terrace. The fence is old and
they had the item on their agenda. The developer agreed to have the fence taken out during the
home demolition and asked for a letter from the strata confirming this authorization. The



ownership of the fence has not vet been confirmed but both parties are in agreeance to have it
removed and that the developer will replace it with a design that will match the project at a later
date during the final construction process.

An email from the President of the Strata of Bertram Place - Linda MacKay was received later
that evening (copy attached) to obtain confirmation on who the letter should be addressed to,
requesting consideration regarding the lighting in the parking area behind the town homes and
confained the following comment:

I personally appreciate the thought that vas put info your project as far as placement on
the properiy with as much distance as possible between our buildings. Kensington
Terrace will certainly improve our neighborhood

it is the opinion of the developer and those assisting the developer that neighborhood response
and support of the project is very positive and expect no opposition regarding the rezoning
application.

This report was prepared by Sandy McAfee - Independent Contractor on June 21, 2013

hd—



CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10872
Z13-0022 - John Bauer, Irvin and Linda Cordes
1369 and 1375 Bertram Street

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning
classification of Lot 13, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 2271, located at 1369 Bertram
Street, Kelowna, B.C., and Lot 14, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 2271, located at 1375

Bertram Street, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing zone to the RM5
- Medium Density Multiple Housing zone.

2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 29" day of July, 2013,
Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Approved under the Transportation Act

(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation)

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk




	Agenda
	3.1 Bylaw No. 10867 (OCP13-0014) and Bylaw No. 10868 (Z13-0023) - 1150 & 1200 Steele Road, No. 21 Great Projects Ltd.
	3.1 Bylaw No. 10867 (OCP13-0014) and Bylaw No. 10868 (Z13-0023) - 1150 & 1200 Steele Road, No. 21 Great Projects Ltd.
	3.1 Bylaw No. 10867 (OCP13-0014) and Bylaw No. 10868 (Z13-0023) - 1150 & 1200 Steele Road, No. 21 Great Projects Ltd.
	3.1 Bylaw No. 10867 (OCP13-0014) and Bylaw No. 10868 (Z13-0023) - 1150 & 1200 Steele Road, No. 21 Great Projects Ltd.
	3.2 Bylaw No. 10872 (Z13-0022) - 1369 & 1375 Bertram Street, John Bauer and Irvin & Linda Cordes
	3.2 Bylaw No. 10872 (Z13-0022) - 1369 & 1375 Bertram Street, John Bauer and Irvin & Linda Cordes
	3.2 Bylaw No. 10872 (Z13-0022) - 1369 & 1375 Bertram Street, John Bauer and Irvin & Linda Cordes

